
 

 

ADDENDUM NO.    1 
 

 

ISSUE DATE:       

May 29, 2025 

 

FROM:  

Charter Construction Services, Inc.  

2801-C Nash St N. 

Wilson, NC  27896  

Ph: 252-265-0035 

Fax: 252-265-0036 

Email: Monica@TheCharterCompanies.com 

 

 

PROJECT:  

Leggett Volunteer Fire Department & Town Hall 

29 Draughn Rd   

Tarboro NC 27886  

 

BID OPENING:  

2:00pm on June 5, 2025 

 

BID OPENING LOCATION:  

Leggett Volunteer Fire Department & Town Hall 

29 Draughn Rd   

Tarboro NC 27886 

   

This addendum becomes a part of the Bid and Contract Documents and modifies the original Bid 

Documents and Original Plans, as noted below. Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum by inserting the 

number and issue date of this addendum in the blank space provided on the Bid Form.  Failure to do so 

may subject the Bidder to disqualification. 

 

1 – Pre-Bid Meeting Key Notes – Dated 05-15-2025 

 

2 – Pre-Bid Meeting Sign-in Sheet – Dated 05-15-2029  

 

3 – RFI Log – Dated 05-29-2025 

 

4 – Revision 1 Sheets – Dated 05-15-2025  

5 – Revision 2 Sheets – Dated 05-29-2025  

 

 



PRE-BID MEETING AGENDA
LEGGETT VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT & TOWN HALL

29 DRAUGHN RD TARBORO NC 27886

Bid Date June 5, 2025

Bid Location Leggett VFD; 29 Draughn Rd  Tarboro NC 27886

Bid Time 2:00 PM

Contract General Construction and Site Preparation

Time of Completion 330 calendar days

Alternates No 1. Add for Overhead Door Upgrade to Full Glass

No 2. Deduct for Storage Building

No 3. Add for Overhead Door Upgrade to One Row Glass

No 4. Add to Install Full Height Liner Panels

No 5. Deduct for Existing Building Demolition

KEY NOTES

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

The plans have been approved by Edgecombe County Inspections, GC to apply and 

obtain separate permits for lot 1 and lot 2, GC responsible for permitting fee's.

GC to coordinate with third party testing, paid for by owner.

All RFI's are due by EOD May 26, 2025

Construction should start with the storage building and completion prior to 

demolition on the existing building.

May 15, 2025

General Contractor will provide a project supervisor on the site at all times while 

work is being performed.

5% retainage will be applied to this project.

5% bid security to be submitted with Bid Package.

100% Performance and Payment bond will be required.

MBE Identification form to be included in bid package.





LEGGETT VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT TOWN HALL

 29 DRAUGHN RD TARBORO NC 27886

RFI # QUESTION ANSWER

1 When is ancipated award?
Owners are looking to award this project 

shortly after the bid-opening.

2 Clarify SP2 Note regarding alternate.
If deduct Alternate No 2 is accepted the 

project will be completed in one phase.

3
Existing building demolition, permiting, 

and asbestos testing.

GC to include asbestos testing and demo 

permit in base bid and in Alternate No 5 

4

Please confirm that the existing building 

must be demolished in order to construct 

the new fire station. As shown on SP 1 and 

SP 2 the existing fire station is in the 

same location as the proposed new fire 

station, therefore the existing structure 

must be demolished prior to construction 

of the new fire station. If this is not the 

case, please clarify.

The existing building will need to be demo'd 

prior to construction for the new building on 

Lot 1.

5

Is the antenna next to the building, the 

flagpole, and mailboxes part of the demo 

of the existing building?

Yes

6 Is the existing slab, foundations, and 

concrete drive part of the demo?

Site demo part of base bid.  Building 

(including foundations) demolition is the 

alternate.

7

Please confirm there is no asbestos 

report, and if hazardous materials are 

found the contractor shall follow 

Specification Selective Demo (024119-1) 

section 1.4 

No asbestos testing has been completed at 

this time, refer to RFI 3

8

Are there structural demo specs? There 

are only specs in the package are for 

selective demolition. No structural demolition specifications.

9

When would the existing building be 

demolished? Phase 1 or phase 2?

The existing building will need to be demo'd 

after CO on phase 1 (storage building).

10

What type of sealer are you wanting on 

this concrete floor? Just typical cure and 

seal or something heavier duty? Typical cure and seal.

May 29, 2025



LEGGETT VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT TOWN HALL

 29 DRAUGHN RD TARBORO NC 27886

11

Is the idea that we will build the smaller 

storage building completely before 

tearing down the fire station and starting 

on the new one?

Correct.  Building 2 to be completed and 

owner move in prior to starting Building 1.

12

Please confirm if washer, dryer, and ice 

machine shown on Pg. B1 of the building 

one plans are in the contract. Please 

specify if OPCI or otherwise.

If the aforementioned appliances are in 

the contract to be provided and installed 

by the contractor, please provide a basis 

of design.

See finish specification on B-1 Revision 2 

sheets for washer and dryer specs. Ice 

machine to be provided and installed by 

Owner after CO, GC to include required 

conncetions for Owner installation.

13

Can you figure out the treads on the stair 

in the bay area? It says concrete pan filled 

but also shows a grated tread. If you can 

find that out that would be great. 

Stairs in truck bay to be grated, interior 

stairs should be wood. See Revision 2 

sheets.

14

The interior stair shows an LVL stringer 

with concrete treads and the detail shows 

grated treads also. Can we figure that out 

as well. 

Stairs in truck bay to be grated, interior 

stairs should be wood. See Revision 2 

sheets.

15

The plans are locked to where I cannot 

scale them to figure out the channel size 

for the stairs. Please let me know if we 

can get that fixed. We are unable to send out unverified plans. 

16

Could the project schedule be extended to 

13 or 14 months? 

Project duration to be 13 months. If 

alternate no 2 is accepted, project to remain 

at 11 months.



LEGGETT VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT TOWN HALL

 29 DRAUGHN RD TARBORO NC 27886

17

Can you clarify what kind of Grid and Tile 

we are to price for this project?

I’m thinking just a Standard Fine Fissured 

Square Edge Tile and 15/16” Intermediate 

Duty Grid for ACT Type A and Kitchen Zone 

or VWG Panel & 15/16”  Intermediate Duty 

Grid for ACT Type C (moisture resistant). 

Please confirm that none of these ceilings 

are to be Fire Rated. Any additional 

information or clarifications for Ceiling 

Types would be helpful.

Reference finish schedule. No ceilings are 

required to be rated.

18

What is the wall finish behind & above the 

metal liner panels of the truck bay side of 

the wall at CL6?

See revision2  on B-4, full height panels on 

this wall to be included in base bid. 

19 Does the wall at CL6 need to be fire rated? No, wall does not need to be rated. 

20

Will the exposed deck and structure be 

painted? Yes, exposed structural to be painted.

21

Spec section 054000 CFMF references 

section 092216 “Non-Structural Metal 

Framing”, this section was not provided.  

All this framing is considered non-

structural, can the architect provide or 

should we use 054000? Use Section 054000.

22

Spec section 054000 CFMF requires the 

framer to submit shop drawings, this is 

uncommon for non-structural framing.  

Should we include shop drawings? Shop drawings are not required.

23

Which bays are acceptable for Portal 

Frame bracing in both buildings? Between C/E and 8/9



LEGGETT VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT TOWN HALL

 29 DRAUGHN RD TARBORO NC 27886

24 Are these tube columns to support 

mezzanine? Are these the only location 

allowed?

The two columns indicated are for 

mezzanine framing. Those are the only 

locations allowed.

25

Frame line "7" will need to move to 1'4" 

from the main building in lieu of 6'8". 

Please confirm this is acceptable. Yes

26

Can we delete frame line "11" No need for 

frame 5'4" from endwalls. Yes

27

On the tube steel building on the lean to 

side wall can the post be very 4 to 5 ‘ ? 

Also on the eave height for the lean to will 

11’ work instead of 12’8 this is what they r 

asking me Sent from my iPhone

Posts 4-5' OC for lean to wall is acceptable.  

Eave height should remain 12'-8"

28

Calling for a closed cell foam insulation 

spray foam is this what you are looking 

for?

Refer to B-1 wall legend note #1.

29

Sheet E-1 shows what looks like 2x2 

fixtures in the bathrooms but lighting 

schedule doesn't show any 2x2 fixtures.  

This was unintentionally left off of the 

schedule. The fixture in question is a 

Lithonia "CPX" 2x2 Led Lighting Panel with 

Satin White Lens, 120V, 4,000 Lumens & 

4,000K Color Temp.  

30
Who is providing the cord reels? If under 

electrical contract is there a spec?  

The owner will provide the cord reels but 

the electrician is responsible for getting 

power to the location(s) in which is to be 

coordinated with the owner prior to 

installation.



LEGGETT VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT TOWN HALL

 29 DRAUGHN RD TARBORO NC 27886

31

Sheet E-2 shows honeywell "e3" system, 

who furnishes controller is electrical 

contractor responsible for control 

raceway?  

All wiring by the electrical contractor.  

Mechanical Contractor shall furnish and 

install the "E3" system devices

32
What are the specs on Automatic Transfer 

Switch?  

Auto Transfer Switch shall be provided by 

the generator manufacturer and shall be 

suitable for the generator.  Contractor shall 

review generator specs & ATS with the 

manufacturer prior to ordering equipment.



Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

Sheet:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

R
ev

is
io

n 
da

te
:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Date:

Drawn By:

Project Number:

Survey By:
Field Book:

Client Code:

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR

RECORDATION,
SALES OR

CONVEYANCES
(SEAL HERE)

Scale (Horz.):
Scale (Vert.):

Zo
ne

:
Pi

n 
N

um
be

r:

PA
VI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

15
 M

AY
 2

02
5

LE
G

G
ET

T 
VO

LU
N

TE
ER

48
11

-9
8-

78
17

B-
2

ED
G

EC
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
N

O
. 5

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

N/A
N/A

CV

CONDAW
MAY 2025

24-200

LR

OWNER REPRESENTATIVE :

CHARTER CONSTRUCTION

2801-C NASH STREET NW
WILSON, NC 27896
TELE: (252) 265-0035

OWNER:

LEGGETT VFD
29 DRAUGHN RD
TARBORO, NC 27886

SERVICES, INC.



Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

Sheet:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

R
ev

is
io

n 
da

te
:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Date:

Drawn By:

Project Number:

Survey By:
Field Book:

Client Code:

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR

RECORDATION,
SALES OR

CONVEYANCES
(SEAL HERE)

Scale (Horz.):
Scale (Vert.):

Zo
ne

:
Pi

n 
N

um
be

r:

PA
VI

N
G

 E
D

IT
S

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T

O
VE

R
AL

L 
SI

TE
 L

AY
O

U
T

15
 M

AY
 2

02
5

LE
G

G
ET

T 
VO

LU
N

TE
ER

48
11

-9
8-

78
17

B-
2

ED
G

EC
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
N

O
. 5

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

N/A
1" = 30'

SP2

CONDAW
MAY 2025

24-200

LR

PAVEMENT
MATERIAL CALLED
OUT (TYP. FOR
REVISION CLOUDS)



Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

Sheet:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

R
ev

is
io

n 
da

te
:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Date:

Drawn By:

Project Number:

Survey By:
Field Book:

Client Code:

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR

RECORDATION,
SALES OR

CONVEYANCES
(SEAL HERE)

Scale (Horz.):
Scale (Vert.):

Zo
ne

:
Pi

n 
N

um
be

r:

PA
VI

N
G

 E
D

IT
S

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T

PH
AS

E 
1 

SI
TE

 &
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 P
LA

N
 

15
 M

AY
 2

02
5

LE
G

G
ET

T 
VO

LU
N

TE
ER

48
11

-9
8-

78
17

B-
2

ED
G

EC
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
N

O
. 5

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

N/A
1" = 30'

SP3

CONDAW
MAY 2025

24-200

LR



Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

Sheet:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

R
ev

is
io

n 
da

te
:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Date:

Drawn By:

Project Number:

Survey By:
Field Book:

Client Code:

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR

RECORDATION,
SALES OR

CONVEYANCES
(SEAL HERE)

Scale (Horz.):
Scale (Vert.):

Zo
ne

:
Pi

n 
N

um
be

r:

PA
VI

N
G

 E
D

IT
S

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T

PH
AS

E 
1 

G
R

AD
IN

G
 P

LA
N

15
 M

AY
 2

02
5

LE
G

G
ET

T 
VO

LU
N

TE
ER

48
11

-9
8-

78
17

B-
2

ED
G

EC
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
N

O
. 5

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

N/A
1" = 30'

SP4

CONDAW
MAY 2025

24-200

LR



Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

Sheet:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

R
ev

is
io

n 
da

te
:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Date:

Drawn By:

Project Number:

Survey By:
Field Book:

Client Code:

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR

RECORDATION,
SALES OR

CONVEYANCES
(SEAL HERE)

Scale (Horz.):
Scale (Vert.):

Zo
ne

:
Pi

n 
N

um
be

r:

PA
VI

N
G

 E
D

IT
S

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T

PH
AS

E 
2 

SI
TE

 &
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 P
LA

N
15

 M
AY

 2
02

5

LE
G

G
ET

T 
VO

LU
N

TE
ER

48
11

-9
8-

78
17

B-
2

ED
G

EC
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
N

O
. 5

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

N/A
1" = 30'

SP6

CONDAW
MAY 2025

24-200

LR



Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

Sheet:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

R
ev

is
io

n 
da

te
:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Date:

Drawn By:

Project Number:

Survey By:
Field Book:

Client Code:

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR

RECORDATION,
SALES OR

CONVEYANCES
(SEAL HERE)

Scale (Horz.):
Scale (Vert.):

Zo
ne

:
Pi

n 
N

um
be

r:

PA
VI

N
G

 E
D

IT
S

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T

PH
AS

E 
2 

G
R

AD
IN

G
 P

LA
N

15
 M

AY
 2

02
5

LE
G

G
ET

T 
VO

LU
N

TE
ER

48
11

-9
8-

78
17

B-
2

ED
G

EC
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
N

O
. 5

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

N/A
1" = 30'

SP7

CONDAW
MAY 2025

24-200

LR



A

B

Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

Sheet:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

R
ev

is
io

n 
da

te
:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Date:

Drawn By:

Project Number:

Survey By:
Field Book:

Client Code:

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR

RECORDATION,
SALES OR

CONVEYANCES
(SEAL HERE)

Scale (Horz.):
Scale (Vert.):

Zo
ne

:
Pi

n 
N

um
be

r:

PA
VI

N
G

 E
D

IT
S

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T

PH
AS

E 
1 

& 
PH

AS
E 

2 
ER

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
AN

15
 M

AY
 2

02
5

LE
G

G
ET

T 
VO

LU
N

TE
ER

48
11

-9
8-

78
17

B-
2

ED
G

EC
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
N

O
. 5

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

N/A
1" = 30'

SP8

CONDAW
MAY 2025

24-200

LR



Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

Sheet:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

R
ev

is
io

n 
da

te
:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Date:

Drawn By:

Project Number:

Survey By:
Field Book:

Client Code:

PRELIMINARY PLAN
NOT FOR

RECORDATION,
SALES OR

CONVEYANCES
(SEAL HERE)

Scale (Horz.):
Scale (Vert.):

Zo
ne

:
Pi

n 
N

um
be

r:

PA
VI

N
G

 E
D

IT
S

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T

D
ET

AI
LS

15
 M

AY
 2

02
5

LE
G

G
ET

T 
VO

LU
N

TE
ER

48
11

-9
8-

78
17

B-
2

ED
G

EC
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
N

O
. 5

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

N/A
N/A

DT1

CONDAW
MAY 2025

24-200

LR



R
EF

.

UP

UP

1

1

B

6

6

B-3

1

B-34B-3

3

B-3 2

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

11

11

12

12

H

3'-10 1/2"
3'-4" 4'-2 1/2" 7'-1" 3'-0" 7'-1" 4'-2 1/2" 3'-4"

3'-10 1/2"
3'-2" 3'-0" 2'-6" 14'-0" 6'-0" 14'-0" 6'-0" 14'-0" 6'-0" 14'-0" 8'-4"

40'-0" 91'-0"

131'-0"

11'-5" 17'-2" 11'-5" 6'-8" 19'-0" 20'-0" 20'-0" 20'-0" 5'-4"

54
'-0

"

2'
-0

"
50

'-0
"

2'
-0

"

131'-0"

40'-0" 91'-0"

14'-6" 14'-1" 11'-5" 6'-8" 19'-0" 20'-0" 20'-0" 20'-0" 5'-4"

11
'-0

"
20

'-3
"

4'
-8

"

9'
-1

1"
10

'-4
"

10
'-4

"

3'
-1

0 
1/

2"
3'

-4
"

6'
-1

0 
1/

2"
3'

-4
"

7'
-0

"
3'

-4
"

3'
-6

"
3'

-2
"

3'
-4

"
16

'-3
"

EQ EQ EXPANDABLE 
END WALL

AIR PACKS FOR TANKS

3'-8" 3'-0" 1'-8"3'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0"

CLEAR
4'-6"

28'-7" 3'-1" 8'-4"4'
-1

0"
4'

-1
0"

31
'-3

"

17'-2" 5'-0" 6'-9" 5'-11"

OFFICE 1
FIRE-DEPT.

104

OFFICE 2
TOWN-HALL

103

OFFICE 3
EXTRA

102

10'-4" 29'-8"

COMMON
AREA

101

16
'-8

"
16

'-8
"

16
'-8

"

TRUCK BAYS
100

F

D

W
A

R
M

IN
G

K
IT

C
H

EN
10

8

22
'-9

"
20

'-3
"

11
'-0

"

C

E

1
B-5

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

9'
-9

"

ICE
MACHINE

8'-8" 14'-0" 6'-0" 14'-0" 6'-0" 14'-0" 6'-0" 14'-0" 8'-4"

5'
-0

"

SH. SH.

J J

A A

3 4

52

D.

W.
CL.
105

3'-0"

2'
-9

 1
/2

"

EXPANDABLE END WALL

13

02

03 04 05 06

01

07080910

11

1214

15

16

17

18

192021

22

2324

25

ALL INTERIOR STUD 
WALLS TO FLOOR 
DECK ABOVE

CORRIDOR
106

CL
107

MENS
109WOMEN

110

2 A
1 A

1 B
2 B

1 B
2 B

1 B
2 B

1 B
2 B

3 B
4 C

1 B
4 B

1 B
2 B

4 C
2 B

CONCRETE 
FILLED BOLLARD

D.S. D.S.D.S.

D.S. D.S. D.S. D.S. D.S. D.S.

D.S.D.S.D.S.D.S.

AA

A

A

A

A

D

5'-1"5'-1" 5'
-0

"

---
- SEE ENLARGED PLANS

FOR DETAILED INFORMATION

1
B-4

2
B-4

1
B-6

2
B-6

F.E.

F.E.

F.E.

F.E.4" FURRING WALLS 
@ PERIMETER

FLOOR 
SINK

RUBBER STAIR 
TREADS

LVT ON LANDING

DF

12" TRENCH DRAIN. COORDINATE WITH PLUMBING DRAWINGS.

FLOOR

1 POLISHED CONCRETE

ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE

LUXURY VINYL TILE3

BASE

A

4" HIGH RUBBER 
COVE BASE

WALLS

1
BASE: EXPOSED STRUCTURE 
OVER LINER PANEL TO 7' A.F.F.
ALTERNATE: FULL HEIGHT LINER 
PANEL

CEILING

A

2'x2' ACOUSTIC LAY IN 
CEILING TILE. 8"-0" 
CEILING HEIGHT

EXPOSED STRUCTURE 
w/ R38 LINER

B

BASE
CEILING

FLOOR
WALLS

NOTES:
1. ALL FINISH TO BE AS SPECIFIED, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
2. ALL COLORS OF FINISHES TO BE SELECTED BY OWNER. 

NONE

5/8" GYPSUM PAINTED 3 COATS (1 
COAT PRIMER & 2 COATS FINISH) 
LATEX PAINT, EGGSHELL SHEEN

RUBBER TREADS4

B 2

4" HIGH RUBBER COVE 
BASE @ LANDINGS

C

2 SEALED CONCRETE

MOISTURE RESISTANT
2'x2' ACOUSTIC LAY 
IN CEILING TILE

C3 EXPOSED STRUCTURE

5/8" TYPE "X" IMPACT, MOISTURE, 
MOLD RESISTANT DRYWALL 
PAINTED 3 COATS (1 COAT PRIMER 
& 2 COATS FINISH) W/LATEX PAINT, 
EGGSHELL SHEEN, COLOR BY 
OWNER

4

SYMBOL

WALL LEGEND

NOTES:
1. R-11 SOUND BATT INSULATION IN PROPOSED INTERIOR STUD WALLS.
2. R-19 @ EXTERIOR WALLS
3. R-25 LINER SYSTEM @ OFFICE AREA WALLS
4. R-38 LINER SYSTEM OVER OFFICE ROOF AREA
5. R-38 LINER SYSTEM OVER TRUCK BAY ROOF AREA
6. R-19 LINER SYSTEM @ TRUCK BAY WALLS

8" WALL GIRTS W/ METAL 
PANEL

PROPOSED 600S162-43 STUDS @ 
16" O.C. W/ 600T125-43 T&B TRACKS

PROPOSED 362S162-43 STUDS @ 
16" O.C. W/ 362T125-43 T&B TRACKS

Sheet:

Ti
tle

 S
he

et
:

Project Number:

Drawn by:

O
w

ne
r:

Issue Date:
CGL

Le
gg

et
 V

ol
un

te
er

 F
ire

 D
ep

t.
D

av
id

 C
ok

er

29
 D

ra
ug

hn
 R

oa
d

Ta
rb

or
o,

 N
C

 2
78

86

Bu
ild

in
g 

O
ne

29
 D

ra
ug

hn
 R

d,
 T

ar
bo

ro
, N

C
27

88
6

24-034

B-1

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N

02/10/2025

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"FLOOR PLAN
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BASE: EXPOSED STRUCTURE 
OVER LINER PANEL TO 7'-6" A.F.F.

ALTERNATE: FULL HEIGHT LINER 
PANEL 2
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FINISH SPECIFICATIONS 

(GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT COLOR SAMPLES FOR APPROVAL) 

EXTERIOR 

ROOF PANELS (REAR MAIN ROOF) 24 GAUGE, STANDING SEAM  

COLOR: GALVALUME 

GUTTER, DOWNSPOUTS AND TRIM  24 GAUGE GUTTER & DOWNSPOUTS AS SUPPLIED BY BUILDING 

MANUFACTURER  

COLOR: KYNAR 500 - SELECTED BY OWNER 

STOREFRONT “KAWNEER” 451TCG OR EQUAL  

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

HOLLOW METAL DOORS AND FRAMES PAINT “PITTSBURGH PAINTS” SEMI-GLOSS  

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

ALUMINUM CANOPY BALLEW’S ALUMINUM PRODUCTS INC. OR EQUAL PRE-FINISHED 

PAINT 

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

OVERHEAD DOOR RAYNOR, ALUMAVIEW AV200 INSULATED OVERHEAD DOOR OR 

EQUAL  

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

 

INTERIOR 

FLOORS LUXURY VINYL PLANK:  

SOUTHWIND AUTHENTIC PLANK LVP OR EQUAL 

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

 

CONCRETE SEALANT: 

BETCO “SURE CURE” FLOOR SEALER AND FINISH OR EQUAL 

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

BASE JOHNSONITE 4” HIGH RUBBER COVE BASE OR EQUAL 

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

WALLS PAINT “PITTSBURGH PAINTS” SEMI-PERMEABLE FINISH OR EQUAL 

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

CEILING ARMSTRONG, 2’ x 2’ SQUARE ACOUSTICAL LAY-IN TILE & GRID OR 

EQUAL 

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

 

ACCESSORIES: 

INTERIOR WOOD DOORS “MOHAWK”, SOLID CORE BIRCH, PREMIUM 2000 FACTORY FINISH 

OR EQUAL 

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

CABINETS MELAMINE EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR SURFACES  

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

PLASTIC LAMINATE TOPS WILSONART, “SERIES 60” FINISH OR EQUAL 

COLOR: SELECTED BY OWNER 

 

TOILET ACCESSORIES: 

PAPER HOLDER AMERICAN SPECIALTIES #0263-1 OR EQUAL 

TOWEL DISPENSER AMERICAN SPECIALTIES #0210 OR EQUAL 

SOAP DISPENSER AMERICAN SPECIALTIES #0345 OR EQUAL 

GRAB BARS AMERICAN SPECIALTIES #3801P, 18”, 36”, 42” 

MIRROR WALL HUNG 24”W x 36”H, ALUMINUM EDGE TRIM 

RESTROOM SIGNAGE UNISEX WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE BATHROOM SIGN-ADA 

COMPLIANT TACTILE BRAILLE SIGN 6” X 8” 

COLOR: WHITE ON BLACK BACKGROUND 

 

DOOR HARDWARE SCHEDULE 

ALL HARDWARE TO HAVE “BRUSHED NICKLE” FINISH 

LOCKSET “YALE” 4600LN, GRADE 2 LOCKSET OR EQUAL 

CLOSERS GRADE 1 w/ FULL COVER, 2500 OR EQUAL 

EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR DOOR HINGES BALL BEARING HINGES WITH 32D FINISH OR EQUAL 

DOOR STOPS “MCKINNEY” WROUGHT ALL STOPS No. WSO2 WITH STAINLESS 

STEEL FINISH OR EQUAL 

KICK-DOWN DOOR STOP “ROCKWOOD”, #460 

 

APPLIANCES: 

REFRIGERATOR GE MODEL: “GTS22KYNRFS” 21.9 Cu. Ft. TOP-FREEZER 

REFRIGERATOR, 66 3/8H x 32 ¾W x 34 1/2D 

COLOR: STAINLESS STEEL 

OVEN/RANGE GE MODEL: “GRF600AVSS” 30” FREE-STANDING ELECTRIC 

CONVECTION RANGE, 47 1/4H x 30W x 27 7/8D 

COLOR: STAINLESS STEEL 

DISHWASHER GE PROFILE MODEL: “PDT715SYVFS” ENERGY STAR, 34H x 23 ¾W x 

24D 

COLOR: STAINLESS STEEL 

MICROWAVE RANGE HOOD COMBO GE, MODEL: “JVM3160DFWW” 30” WIDE, 1000 WATT, 1.6 CUBIC 

FOOT OR EQUAL 

COLOR: STAINLESS STEEL 

WASHER ELECTRIC FRONT TOP LOAD, GE OR EQUAL 

DRYER ELECTRIC FRONT LOAD, GE OR EQUAL 

 

NOTES: 

• EACH DOOR TO HAVE DOOR STOPS 

• MANUFACTURER SHALL SUPPLY MASTER KEY(S) TO FIT ALL DOORS VERIFY KEYING SCHEMES W/ OWNER 

• G.C. TO FURNISH AND INSTALL ALL ADA RESTROOM SIGNAGE, ALL OTHER INTERIOR SIGNAGE TO BE 

FURNISHED BY THE OWNER AND INSTALLED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AS PER ADA 

REQUIREMENTS 

ABBREVIATIONS 

• T – TEMPERED GLASS 

• TN – TINTED 

• WG – WIRE GLASS 

• SWG – SAFETY WIRE GLASS 

• SG – SPANDREL GLASS 

26 GAUGE INTERIOR FULL
HEIGH METAL PANELS TO BE
INCLUDE IN BASE BID FOR
THIS WALL ONLY. 2
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MAIN LEVEL
0' - 0"

B

EAVE HGT-1
20' - 6"

B.O.FOOTING
-1' - 6"

H
50'-0"

TRUCK BAYS
100

8" 4000 PSI CONCRETE w/ REINFORCING WIRE,
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER, SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

CONC. FOOTING, 
SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

PEMB FRAME 
PER SUPPLIER

PEMB GUTTER & DOWNSPOUTS - 
SEE ELEVATIONS FOR LOCATIONS

26 GAUGE EXTERIOR 
METAL PANELS

26 GAUGE INTERIOR METAL PANELS 
TO 7' - 6" A.F.F.

R-19 FIBERGLASS INSULATION 
REINFORCED VINYL BACK WALL 

INSULATION

R-38 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM 8" METAL PURLINSPEMB RIDGE CAP

1" 
12"

1'
-6

"
20

'-6
"

1
B-6

2
B-6

1" 
12"

MAIN LEVEL
0' - 0"

B

EAVE HGT-1
20' - 6"

B.O.FOOTING
-1' - 6"

PEAK
31' - 2"

H

EAVE HGT-2
24' - 0"

50'-0"

TRUCK BAYS
100

8" 4000 PSI CONCRETE w/ REINFORCING WIRE,
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER, SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

CONC. FOOTING, 
SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

PEMB GUTTER & DOWNSPOUTS - 
SEE ELEVATIONS FOR LOCATIONS

26 GAUGE EXTERIOR 
METAL PANELS

26 GAUGE INTERIOR METAL PANELS 
TO 7' - 6" A.F.F.

R-19 FIBERGLASS INSULATION 
REINFORCED VINYL BACK WALL 

INSULATION

R-38 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM

8" METAL PURLINS

PEMB RIDGE CAP

1" 
12"

1'
-6

"
20

'-6
"

30

11 12

D. W.

F.E.

ICE
MACHINE

METAL PIPE GUARDRAIL

3'
-6

"

METAL PIPE HANDRAIL
w/ WALL RETURNS & EXTENTIONS

METAL GALVANIZED
C-CHANNEL LANDING METAL GALVANIZED

C-CHANNEL STRINGERS

METAL GALVANIZED GRATING STAIR TREADS & LANDING

PROJECTION
3'-11" MAX.

1
B-6

2
B-6

B-7
1

B-7
2

B-7
2

1" 
12"

CONC. FOOTING, 
SEE FOUNDATION PLAN FOR DETAILS

26 GAUGE EXTERIOR 
METAL PANELS

PRE-ENGINEERED STRUCTURAL 
FRAME BEYOND PER PEMB SUPPLIER

8" PURLINS PER PEMB SUPPLIER

EAVE/ GUTTER DETAIL
PER PEMB SUPPLIER

24 GAUGE METAL ROOF PANELS 
("GALVALUME")
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MAIN FLOOR LINE

B.O. FOOTING

EAVE HEIGHT

BUILDING/ GRIDLINE

METAL FLASHING PER 
PEMB SUPPLIER

GRADE PER CIVIL

3'
-8

"
3'

-8
"

6'
-0

"
6'

-0
"

8" GIRTS PER PEMB SUPPLIER

8" 4000 PSI CONCRETE w/ 
REINFORCING WIRE,
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER, SEE 
FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

12
1 

&/ OR 
4

APPROVED SUB-GRADE

R-19 FIBERGLASS INSULATION 
REINFORCED VINYL BACK 
WALL INSULATION

R-38 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM
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B-4
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"1 BUILDING SECTION-A

B-4
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"2 BUILDING SECTION-B

B-4
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"4 TYPICAL WALL SECTION
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MAIN LEVEL
0' - 0"

B

EAVE HGT-1
20' - 6"

B.O.FOOTING
-1' - 6"

PEAK
31' - 2"

H

EAVE HGT-2
24' - 0"

50'-0"

TRUCK BAYS
100

6" 3000 PSI CONCRETE w/ REINFORCING WIRE,
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER, SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

CONC. FOOTING, 
SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

PEMB GUTTER & DOWNSPOUTS -
SEE ELEVATIONS FOR LOCATIONS

26 GAUGE EXTERIOR 
METAL PANELS

26 GAUGE INTERIOR METAL PANELS 
TO 7' - 6" A.F.F.

R-19 FIBERGLASS INSULATION 
REINFORCED VINYL BACK WALL 

INSULATION

R-38 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM

8" METAL PURLINS

PEMB RIDGE CAP

1" 
12"

1
'-
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"
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0
'-
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"

30

11 12

D. W.

F.E.

ICE

MACHINE

METAL PIPE GUARDRAIL

3
'-
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"

METAL PIPE HANDRAIL
w/ WALL RETURNS & EXTENTIONS

METAL GALVANIZED
C-CHANNEL LANDING

METAL GALVANIZED
C-CHANNEL STRINGERS

METAL GALVANIZED GRATING STAIR TREADS & LANDING

PROJECTION
3'-11" MAX.

1

B-6

2

B-6

B-7

1

B-7

2

B-7

2

1" 
12"

B-4

B-4

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"2 BUILDING SECTION-B

METAL PANELS TO BE INCLUDE IN

BASE BID FOR THIS WALL ONLY.

ALL OTHER INTERIOR WALLS IN

TRUCK BAY TO HAVE METAL

PANELS TO 7' - 6" A.F.F. IN BASE

BID.

FULL HEIGHT

26 GAUGE INTERIOR METAL PANEL
TO 7' - 6" A.F.METAL PANELS TO BE INCLUDE IN

BASE BID FOR THIS WALL ONLY.

ALL OTHER INTERIOR WALLS IN

TRUCK BAY TO HAVE METAL

PANELS TO 7' - 6" A.F.F. IN BASE

BID.

FULL HEIGHT

8" 4000 
6 MIL VA

CONC. FOOTING, 
SEE FOUNDATION PLAN FOR DETAILS

26 GAUGE EXTERIOR 
METAL PANELS

PRE-ENGINEERED STRUCTURAL 
FRAME BEYOND PER PEMB SUPPLIER

8" PURLINS PER PEMB SUPPLIER

EAVE/ GUTTER DETAIL
PER PEMB SUPPLIER

24 GAUGE METAL ROOF PANELS 
("GALVALUME")
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8" GIRTS PER PEMB SUPPLIER

6" 3000 PSI CONCRETE w/ 
REINFORCING WIRE,
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER, SEE 
FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

12
1 

&/ OR 
4

APPROVED SUB-GRADE

R-19 FIBERGLASS INSULATION 
REINFORCED VINYL BACK 
WALL INSULATION

R-38 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM

LINER PANEL
TO 7' - 6" A.F.F. @ TRUCK BAYS

2

8" 4000 PSI CONCRETE w/ 
REINFORCING WIRE,
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER, SEE 
FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS
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MAIN LEVEL
0' - 0"

B.O.FOOTING
-1' - 6"

PEAK
31' - 2"

MEZZANINE
12' - 0"
B.O. DECK
11' - 6 1/2"

EAVE HGT-2
24' - 0"

CE

J A

22'-9" 20'-3" 11'-0"

54'-0"

B B BB
6'

-0
"

2'
-0

"

3'
-0

"
4'

-2
"

23 22

16 15 14

F.E.

1'
-6

"
12

'-0
"

12
'-0

"
7'

-2
"

4" 4000 PSI CONCRETE w/ REINFORCING WIRE,
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER, SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

CONC. FOOTING, 
SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

26 GAUGE EXTERIOR 
METAL PANELS

R-25 LINER SYSTEM

R-38 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM

8" METAL PURLINS

PEMB RIDGE CAP

5" CONCRETE FLOOR
OVER METAL DECK

METAL JOISTS/BEAMS PER 
PEMB SUPPLIER

1
B-6

URINAL

MENS
109

CORRIDOR
106

COMMON
AREA

101

STORAGE
200

2
B-6

MEZZANINE BY PEMB 
MANUFACTURERB-7

5

CONC. FOOTING, 
SEE FOUNDATION PLAN FOR DETAILS

26 GAUGE EXTERIOR 
METAL PANELS

PRE-ENGINEERED STRUCTURAL 
FRAME BEYOND PER PEMB SUPPLIER

8" PURLINS PER PEMB SUPPLIER

EAVE/ GUTTER DETAIL
PER PEMB SUPPLIER

24 GAUGE METAL ROOF PANELS 
("GALVALUME")
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GRADE PER CIVIL
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8" GIRTS PER PEMB SUPPLIER

BID ALTERNATE:
LINER PANEL

TO 7' - 6" A.F.F. @ TRUCK BAYS

4" 4000 PSI CONCRETE w/ 
REINFORCING WIRE,
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER, SEE 
FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

12
1 

&/ OR 
4

APPROVED SUB-GRADE

R-19 FIBERGLASS INSULATION 
REINFORCED VINYL BACK 
WALL INSULATION

R-38 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM
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B-5
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"1 BUILDING SECTION-C

B-5
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"2 WALL SECTION-BID ALT.
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CONC. FOOTING, 
SEE FOUNDATION PLAN FOR DETAILS

26 GAUGE EXTERIOR 
METAL PANELS

PRE-ENGINEERED STRUCTURAL 
FRAME BEYOND PER PEMB SUPPLIER

8" PURLINS PER PEMB SUPPLIER

EAVE/ GUTTER DETAIL
PER PEMB SUPPLIER

24 GAUGE METAL ROOF PANELS 
("GALVALUME")
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8" GIRTS PER PEMB SUPPLIER

BID ALTERNATE:

LINER PANEL
TO FULL HEIGHT @ TRUCK BAYS

12
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APPROVED SUB-GRADE

R-19 FIBERGLASS INSULATION 
REINFORCED VINYL BACK 
WALL INSULATION

R-38 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM

2

R
ev

:
D

at
e:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

R
e
v
:

D
a
te

:
D

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
:

2
0

5
.2

2
.2

5
A

s
 P

e
r 

E
n
g

in
e

e
r

3" DIA. X-STRONG
PIPE COLUMN

MC 12x31
CHANNEL

3'
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"
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1'-0"

(+/-) 6'-3 5/8"

34
"-

36
"

H
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D
R

AI
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H
T.

3'
-6

"

G
U

AR
D

R
AI

L 
H

T.

6"X9"X1/2" STEEL
TOP PLATE, TYP.

3'
-6

"

G
U

AR
D

 R
AI

L 
H

T.

11"

GRATING TREAD

1/8" THICK STEEL DIAMOND
PLATE w/ 3"x3"x1/4" STEEL
ANGLES @ 16" O.C. WELD
BETWEEN CHANNELS

1/2" BASE PLATE w/
(4) 3/4" DIA. ANCHOR
BOLTS, TYP

1-1/2" DIA. STEEL
GUARDRAIL

3
B-5

SCALE: N.T.S.ELEVATION

6
B-5

4
B-5

4
B-5

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"DETAIL

5
B-5

ALL WALL GIRTS AND EALL PANELS TO BE
DESIGNED FOR L/240 DEFLECTION

ALL STAIR DETAILS ON THIS SHEET ARE
FOR THE INTERIOR STAIRCASE LOCATED
IN TRUCK BAY

GENERAL NOTES
1/8" THICK STEEL DIAMOND
PLATE w/ 3"x3"x1/4" STEEL
ANGLES @ 16" O.C. WELD
BETWEEN CHANNELS

MC12 x31 CHANNEL
STRINGER

GRATING
11-3/4" TREAD, TYP.

5/8" DIA. x 4"
EXPANSION
OR EPOXY BOLT

3/8" PLATE

STRINGER

TYPICAL

TYPICAL

PIPE
COL.

1/2" CAP PLATE
w/ (2) 5/8" DIA.
BOLTS

1/2" SQ. SOLID
PICKETS @
4-1/2" MAX. O.C.

MC12
CHANNEL

4
B-5

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"DETAIL

6
B-5

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"DETAIL

5
B-5

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"DETAIL
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MAIN LEVEL
0' - 0"

MAIN LEVEL
0' - 0"

1

EAVE HGT-1
20' - 6"

6

B.O.FOOTING
-1' - 6"

B.O.FOOTING
-1' - 6"

PEAK
31' - 2"

PEAK
31' - 2"

7 8 9 10 11

12

MEZZANINE
12' - 0"
B.O. DECK
11' - 6 1/2"

EAVE HGT-2
24' - 0"

1
B-5

52

1
B-4

2
B-4

91'-0"40'-0"

5'-4"20'-0"20'-0"20'-0"19'-0"6'-8"11'-5"17'-2"11'-5"

5" CONCRETE FLOOR
OVER METAL DECK

METAL JOISTS/BEAMS PER 
PEMB SUPPLIER

MEZZANINE BY PEMB 
PEMB SUPPLIER

8" 4000 PSI CONCRETE w/ REINFORCING WIRE,
6 MIL VAPOR BARRIER, SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

F.E.

ICE
MACHINE

13

A

B B B

A
02

03 04 05 06

CONC. FOOTING, 
SEE FOUNDATION PLANS FOR DETAILS

R-38 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM

8" METAL PURLINS

26 GAUGE EXTERIOR 
METAL PANELS

R-25 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM

COMMON
AREA

101

STORAGE
200

TRUCK BAYS
100

26 GAUGE INTERIOR METAL PANELS 
TO 7' - 6" A.F.F.

01

4" 
12"

4" 
12"

6'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

4'
-2

"
3'

-0
"

24 GAUGE METAL 
ROOF PANEL

24 GAUGE METAL 
ROOF PANEL

R-25 LINER 
INSULATION SYSTEM

10
'-0

"10'-0" CLEAR TO 
THE MEZZANINE 
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